
 

 
Call to Meeting 

November 28, 2023 
 
The 64th Annual Meeting of the Westchester Library System (WLS) is Tuesday, November 
28, 2023, at 6:00 p.m. The WLS Regular Board Meeting will immediately follow the Annual 
Meeting at approximately 6:20 p.m. 
 
PLEASE NOTE: This meeting will take place at the WLS Headquarters, 570 Taxter Rd, Ste 
400, Elmsford, NY 10523. (Masks may be required.)  
 

Annual Meeting Agenda 
 
Welcome 
Overview of Annual Activities  
Minutes: November 29, 2022  
Election of WLS Trustees 
 
  District IV: [Lewisboro (South Salem), North Salem, Somers]  

Barbara Tepper (To a full term ending December 31, 2028) 
 
District VIII: [Larchmont, Mamaroneck, Scarsdale] 
Maureen LeBlanc (To a full term ending December 31, 2028 
 
District XIV: [New Rochelle]  
David Mener (To a full term ending December 31, 2028) 
 

 
Regular Meeting Agenda 

 
Minutes: October 24, 2023  
Finances 
Action Item 

Action Item #1: WLS 2024 Operating Budget 
 

President’s Report 
WLS Committee Reports  
Executive Director's Report 
PLDA Report – Yvonne Cech, Director, John C. Hart Memorial Library (Yorktown) 
Public Comment – Members of the public will have an opportunity to address the Board 
after the business of the meeting is completed. Speakers will be limited to 3 minutes 
each. If   there are questions, the Board may or may not choose to answer them at the 
time of the Board meeting. Whether or not and when to answer any question is at the 
sole and absolute discretion of the Board. 
Other 
 
NEXT MEETING: The next Regular Meeting will be held on Tuesday, January 30, 
2024, at 6:00 p.m. 



WESTCHESTER LIBRARY SYSTEM 
Annual & Trustee Meeting 

November 29, 2022 –Approval Pending 
 

ANNUAL MEETING 
 

The Annual Meeting of the Westchester Library System was called to order by Karen Zevin, 
President, at 6:10 p.m. The quorum requirement was met with the following people in attendance: 

Board Members present: Cathy Draper, Nishat Hydari, Wes Iwanski, Maureen LeBlanc, Julie 
Mills-Worthey, Susan Morduch, Diane Tabakman, Francis Okelo, Edris Scherer, Karen Zevin 

Board Members absent: Andrea Bober, Karen Kelley, Jonathan Marshall, Joseph Puglia 

Also present from WLS were: Terry Kirchner, Rob Calouri, Patricia Brigham, Joe Maurantonio, 
Kate Meyer 

 
Dr. Kirchner welcomed all who attended. He noted that it is through WLS’ partnerships with the 
member libraries, government organizations, service organizations community members, 
Westchester County, and others that WLS can assist them in their efforts to create and grow 
welcoming, inclusive services and programs for all residents of their community and the County. 
WLS does its work with a disciplined focus on equity, diversity and inclusion, which gives our 
outreach programs and member library activities the broadest reach and relevance.  
Dr. Kirchner also noted the development of strategic partnerships outside of just libraries; one 
example included a vast group of materials added to the WLS catalog from the National Maritime 
Historical Society in Peekskill. This large project, which was completed in the fall, facilitates 
access to about 4,200 volumes, some of which date back to the nineteenth century. Hendrick 
Hudson Free Library was also a valued partner, acting as the hub for shipping the materials, 
processing the books (i.e. adding spine labels) and searching the WLS catalog to find and set aside 
whatever few works might already be cataloged. Throughout the year WLS updated and improved 
infrastructure, with Wi-Fi upgrades at participating member libraries, Local Area Network (LAN) 
rebuild, and the Virtual Desktop Infrastructure (VDI) upgrade and enhancement. 
 
The business portion of the Annual Meeting was called to order at 6:20 p.m. by Ms. Zevin, who 
introduced each of the WLS Trustees and the Districts they represent. 

ELECTION OF NEW TRUSTEES: Mr. Okelo, Vice Chair of the WLS Nominating & Board 
Development Committee, proposed the following slate of trustees who were nominated by their 
represented libraries and are willing to serve: 

District II [Briarcliff Manor, Ossining, Tarrytown] 
Matthew Weiss (to a full term ending December 31, 2027) 

 
District VIIII [Bronxville Eastchester, Pelham, Tuckahoe]  

Robert Cartolano (to a full term ending December 31, 2027) 
 
District XII [Peekskill]  

Karen Kelley (to a full term ending December 31, 2027) 



 

 
 

There being no nominations from the floor, the above Trustees were elected to the WLS Board of 
Trustees on a motion by Karen Zevin and seconded by Edris Scherer. The motion passed 
unanimously. 

 
MINUTES OF THE 2021 ANNUAL MEETING: The minutes of the Annual Meeting of November 
30, 2021, were approved on a motion by Francis Okelo and seconded by Edris Sherer. The motion 
passed unanimously. 
 
Having completed its agenda, the Board adjourned the business portion of the meeting at 6:25 
p.m. on a motion by Edris Scherer and seconded by Susan Morduch. The motion passed 
unanimously. 

 
 

REGULAR MEETING 
 

The Regular Meeting of the Westchester Library System was called to order by Karen 
Zevin, President, at 6:25 p.m. The quorum requirement was met with the following people in 
attendance:  

Cathy Draper, Nishat Hydari, Wes Iwanski, Maureen LeBlanc, Julie Mills-Worthey, Susan 
Morduch, Diane Tabakman, Francis Okelo, Edris Scherer, Karen Zevin 

Board Members absent: Andrea Bober, Karen Kelley, Jonathan Marshall, Joseph Puglia 

Also present from WLS were: Terry Kirchner, Rob Calouri, Patricia Brigham, Joe Maurantonio, 
Kate Meyer 

MINUTES  

The minutes of the meetings of June 28, 2022, September 27, 2022, and October 25, 2022 were 
approved as submitted on a motion by Ms. Zevin and seconded by Ms. Scherer. The motion passed 
unanimously. 

FINANCIAL REPORTS  

The financial report through October 2022 was presented by Mr. Caluori and reviewed by the board in 
detail. The Board accepted the October 2022 finances on a motion by Ms. Scherer and seconded by 
Ms. Draper. The motion passed unanimously.   

 
       ACTION ITEMS 
  

New WLS Collection Development Policy & Revisions to Workplace Violence, Board Meetings, and 
Sexual Harassment Prevention Policies: The WLS Governance Committee does an annual review of 
WLS policies. Several recent changes in New York State law and New York State Labor Law indicated 
a review for compliance to these changes. The proposed WLS Collection Development Policy & 
Revisions to the Workplace Violence, Board Meetings, and Sexual Harassment Prevention Policies was 
approved by the board as submitted (see attached) on a motion by Ms. Draper and seconded by Ms. 
Scherer. The motion passed unanimously.   
 



 

 
Library Materials Discovery Tool:  Mr. Arana, Director of Information Technology for WLS, presented 
The Aspen Discovery Tool, which will provide library users with a more robust and integrated discovery 
experience for both print and digital materials including those from Hoopla, Overdrive and Kanopy.  
 
The proposed Library Materials Discovery Tool was approved by the board as submitted (see attached) 
on a motion by Ms. Mills-Worthy and seconded by Ms. Draper. The motion passed unanimously. 
 
WLS 2023 Operating Budget: The WLS Budget Committee met on October 6th, October 12th, and 
October 17th to review several options in order to arrive at a budget proposal for the 2023 fiscal year. 
Mr. Caluori reviewed the budget, which was developed in alignment with WLS’s strategic vision and to 
support WLS’s mission to empower lives and communities by connecting people in Westchester County 
with the resources, services and programs available through WLS and the member libraries. 
 
Revenues from all sources include approximately $7.5 million, which is an increase of roughly $893,800 
over 2022. These revenues assume no increase in funding from New York State and a reduction in IT 
fees of approximately 2.4% less than 2022.  Westchester County funding initially assumed a slight 
increase over 2022 for the same activities, but also included an additional $525,000 request for a special 
Digital Equity Community Engagement project. Mr. Caluori noted that the project was not funded, the 
revenue and expenses were equal and isolated, so they were removed and have no impact on the bottom 
line of the budget. Mr. Caluori personally thanked the Budget Committee for all their hard work.  
 
The Proposed WLS 2023 Operating Budget was approved by the board as submitted (see attached) on a 
motion by Ms. Scherer and seconded by Ms. Morduch. The motion passed unanimously.   
 
NYS Minimum Standard Variance Request Forms: On the New York State Annual Report, libraries 
answer whether they meet New York State Minimum Standards as of December 31, 2022. All WLS 
member libraries are in compliance with the exception of Bedford Free Library, Irvington Public Library 
and Warner Library.  Variance Request Forms were submitted for these three libraries, who are currently 
working toward completing their long-range plans. 
 
The proposed Variance Request Forms for Bedford Free Library, Irvington Public Library and Warner 
Library were approved by the board as submitted (see attached) on a motion by Ms. Mills-Worthy and 
seconded by Ms. Scherer. The motion passed unanimously. All forms will be submitted to the NYS 
Library Division of Library Development. 
 
PRESIDENT’S REPORT 
 
Ms. Zevin thanked Cathy Draper for all her hard work as a WLS board member and for her leadership as 
chair of the Governance Committee. 
 
Ms. Zevin reminded board members that committees should be formed as of January 31, 2023, and 
information regarding such will be sent to board members beforehand. Ms. Zevin also noted that all 
board members in officer positions (2-year term) have asked to remain in their roles. 
 
Ms. Zevin noted that the annual performance review for the Executive Director is underway, and this 
process will conclude in January with an Executive Committee session. 
 
COMMITTEE REPORTS 
 
Finance Committee: Ms. LeBlanc noted that the committee reviewed a report that shows cash flow over 
several years.  The report reveals that WLS’s cash balances are predictably cyclic with having the least 



 

cash on hand in the early summer, followed by the most cash on hand later that summer and into the 
early fall.  Ms. LeBlanc also noted that the balance in the operating account at its lowest amount has 
been increasingly larger year-over-year and so the committee reviewed ways to move money from the 
operating account so that it can be used to build additional interest. 
 
Nominating Committee: Dr. Kirchner noted that in January the committee will be searching for a new 
trustee to fill District V (Armonk, Bedford Village, Mount Pleasant, Pound Ridge). 
 
Trustee Training: Dr. Kirchner stated beginning January 1, 2023, each trustee, elected or appointed, of a 
public library, association library or Indian Library will be required to complete a minimum of two hours 
of trustee education annually (Education Law 260-d added by Chapter 468 of the Laws of 2021). 
  
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR’S REPORT 
 
Dr. Kirchner noted that the Mount Vernon Public Library has not yet provided all the required 
documents to complete the registration review process or to complete the 2020 and 2021 New York State 
Annual Reports. Recently Oscar Davis, Jr. has resigned from the Mount Vernon Board of Trustees, and 
two new trustees have been appointed by the Regents: Ron Hood and James Carlos. Ms. Mills-Worthy 
recognized the hard work Dr. Kirchner contributes to Mount Vernon and recognized how challenging it 
has been.  
 
PLDA LIASON’S REPORT 
 
Ms. Cech reported on the November PLDA meeting where the following was discussed: 
 
 Ms. Cech and the PLDA members thanked Ms. Burke for all her work compiling the Annual Statistics 

report.  
 There was further discussion regarding potential amnesty programs for library patrons fines and fees. 

This discussion focuses on the viability of forgiving fines for lost books in addition to late fees.  
 Two new Directors were introduced: Robert Conrad (Chappaqua Library), Cathleen Sulli (Ruth Keeler 

Memorial Library). 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
Having completed its agenda, the Board Adjourned its meeting at 7:23 p.m. on a motion by Ms. 
Morduch and seconded by Ms. Draper that passed unanimously. The January 31st WLS Board Meeting 
will take place in person at the WLS Headquarters at 6 p.m., and all should be prepared to wear a mask if 
needed.  
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
Kate Meyer 
Recording Secretary 



WESTCHESTER LIBRARY SYSTEM 
Trustee Meeting 

October 24, 2023 – Approval Pending 
 
 

REGULAR MEETING 
 

The Regular Meeting of the Westchester Library System was called to order by Karen Zevin at 6:00 
p.m. The quorum requirement was met with the following people in attendance: 

 
Board members present: Anthony Amiano, Andrea Bober, Robert Cartolano, Nishat Hydari, Wes 
Iwanski, Alice Joselow, Karen Kelley, Maureen LeBlanc, Julie Mills-Worthey, Susan Morduch, 
Francis Okelo, Joseph Puglia, Edris Scherer, Diane Tabakman, Karen Zevin 
 
Also present from WLS were Terry Kirchner, Rob Caluori, Pat Brigham, Wilson Arana, Kate 
Meyer 
 
Public Library Directors Association (PLDA) Representative: Yvonne Cech, Director, John C. Hart 
Memorial Library 
 
MINUTES 
 
The minutes of the September 26, 2023, meeting was approved as submitted on a motion by Mr. 
Amiano and seconded by Mr. Puglia. The motion passed unanimously. [Mr. Cartolano and Ms. 
Mills-Worthey were not present for the vote.] 

 

FINANCIAL REPORTS 
 
The financial report through September 2023 was presented by Mr. Caluori in detail. The presentation 
included end-of-year projections for revenues and expenditures as well as an updated statement for 
Temporarily Restricted Net Assets in addition to the regular monthly financial statements and notes.  
The monthly check registers were also distributed, and Mr. Caluori made note of several voided and 
reissued checks that were related to an issue with the bank’s Positive Pay system.  The Board 
accepted the financial report on a motion by Ms. Scherer and seconded by Ms. Morduch. The motion 
was accepted unanimously. [Mr. Cartolano was not present for the vote.] 

 
INFORMATION ITEM 
 

WLS 2024 Operating Budget: The WLS Budget Committee met on September 21st, October 3rd and 
October 19th to review a number of options in order to arrive at a budget proposal for the 2024 fiscal 
year.  Mr. Caluori was thanked for his efforts in working with the Committee during the budget process, 
and all comments received were given serious consideration. 
 
An updated copy of the proposed 2024 Operating Budget was distributed.  Mr. Caluori made note that 
while the figures in the budget were not materially different from the distributed Board Materials, the 
text of the Executive Summary had undergone revision to include how the budget aligns with the WLS 
Strategic Goals.  In the review of the budget the following were discussed in detail: (1) anticipated 
revenues of $7.3 million, (2) estimated expenditures of $7.9 million, (3) use of reserve funds to meet the 
anticipated gap between revenues and expenditures, (4) a pay rate increase of 4% for all employees, 
except those that received mid-year adjustments in 2023, (5) a continuation of the current model for  



Minutes—Approval Pending Page 2 October 24, 2023 
 

 
employee contributions to health care, and (6) no anticipated special projects outside of the operating  
budget.  There was also discussion of specific projects included in the Operating Budget that may or 
may not be implemented as planned based funding levels from Westchester County. 
 
The 2024 Operating Budget will be resubmitted to the Board as an Action Item at the November 2023 
meeting. 
 
 
ACTION ITEM 
 
Employee Handbook and Policy Updates: Ms. Morduch, Chair of the Governance Committee, 
reviewed the employee handbook and policy process with the Board. The Committee met on August 
22, 2023, to review the newly revised WLS Employee Handbook and four policies: #4 Electronic 
Data; #13 Purchasing; #14 Credit Card Usage; #15 Gift Acceptance, and one new policy: #22 
ADA/ADAAA. All items were approved on a motion by Ms. Morduch and seconded by Mr. Iwanski. 
The motion passed unanimously. 
  
PRESIDENT’S REPORT  
 
Ms. Zevin reminded Board members to review the list of Board Committees to decide which they may 
be interested in joining for the coming year. She also noted that committees should be formed as of 
January 31, 2024, and information regarding such will be sent to Board members beforehand. Ms. 
Zevin also noted that new officer positions have been slated as follows: Ms. Morduch, President; Ms. 
Hydari, Vice President; Mr. Amiano, Secretary; the Board will appoint the Treasurer at the January 
2024 meeting, Ms. LeBlanc is slated to fill the role. 
 
Ms. Zevin asked all Board members to save the date for Library Advocacy Day, February 7, 2024. 
 
COMMITTEE REPORTS 
 
Nominating & Board Education: Ms. Kelley, Chair, stated that the committee met before the Board 
Meeting to review the resumes of the candidates slated to fill vacancies for District IV: Lewisboro 
(South Salem), North Salem, Somers, Barbara Tepper, to replace Ms. Scherer and District XIV: New 
Rochelle, David Mener, to replace Frances Okelo. The committee voted unanimously to bring them on 
to the Board. They will be voted on at the November 28, 2024, meeting. 
 
 
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR’S REPORT 
 
A copy of the Executive Director’s Report was mailed in advance of the meeting. 
 
Dr. Kirchner discussed Battle of the Books which was held on October 21, 2023, at Ossining High 
School, and noted that the event was a huge success. Ms. Joselow, Ms. LeBlanc, and Barbara Tepper 
were in attendance. The goal for next year’s event is to get more libraries to participate. 
 
Dr. Kirchner stated that February 7, 2024, is Library Advocacy Day, and WLS is working with 
Ramapo-Catskill Library System (RCLS) and Mid-Hudson Library System (MHLS) to collectively 
hire bus service to Albany. WLS, RCLS and MHLS will work together to present issues that are 
relevant to all three systems. 
 
 



Minutes—Approval Pending Page 3 October 24, 2023 
 

 
Ms. Brigham introduced Connect Westchester; a Westchester County funded Digital Equity Initiative. 
This collaborative partnership with The STEM Alliance, Westchester Library System, Westchester 
County Association, and the County targets underserved and unserved County residents who lack 
Internet connection, devices, and/or basic digital skills supporting workforce development. This 
program, in addition to providing information on Affordable Connectivity Program (reduced cost high 
speed internet for qualifying households), will provide an opportunity for 10 libraries to offer a 15-
hour digital skill training program, with device ownership and hotspots if needed for their patrons.  
  
Mr. Arana reported that most of the libraries have submitted their Service Level Agreements for 2024 
(SLA), noting that some libraries were delayed in signing their agreements. He also noted that the 
email migration project is in full swing, and libraries should have moved to their own email domains 
by the end of the year, 12 libraires have chosen to remain housed under the WLS tenant.  
 
 
PUBLIC LIBRARY DIRECTORS’ ASSOCIATION (PLDA) LIASON REPORT  
 
Ms. Cech reported on the October PLDA meeting where the following was discussed: 
 

 PLDA’s October meeting was virtual. The November meeting will be hybrid and held at the 
Ossining Public Library on November 16, 2023. 

 
 The PLDA Nominating Committee is putting together a slate of officers for 2024. They are 

reaching out to potential candidates and will have a slate by their November meeting. 
 

 WLS is working with John C. Hart Memorial Library on a laptop project which will allow 
employees to work more efficiently.  

 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
Having completed its agenda, the Board adjourned its meeting at 8:27 p.m. on a motion by Ms. Mills-
Worthey and seconded by Ms. Kelley that passed unanimously.  
 
Respectively submitted, 
 
 
Andrea Zuckerman Bober 
Secretary 









Month Ending Month Ending Month Ending Year Ending
10/31/2023 09/30/2023 10/31/2023 12/31/2022

Actual Actual Period difference Period variance Actual

Assets
Current Assets

Operating Cash & Cash Equivalents 2,432,280 2,551,047 (118,767) (4.65) % 2,261,909
Reserve Cash & Cash Equivalents 2,836,408 2,832,232 4,177 0.14 % 2,762,472
Unconditional Promises to Give 610,537 783,489 (172,952) (22.07) % 333,377
Accounts Receivable 232,160 240,046 (7,886) (3.28) % 126,397
Prepaid Expenses 796,536 824,484 (27,947) (3.38) % 723,226

Total Current Assets 6,907,922 7,231,297 (323,376) (4.47) % 6,207,381
Long-Term Assets

Property & Equipment 470,666 485,160 (14,493) (2.98) % 616,574
Right Of Use Asset 1,155,488 1,155,488 0 0.00 % 1,155,488

Total Long-Term Assets 1,626,154 1,640,648 (14,493) (0.88) % 1,772,062
Total Assets 8,534,076 8,871,945 (337,869) (3.80) % 7,979,443

Liabilities
Short-Term Liabilities

Accounts Payable 544,763 526,280 18,483 3.51 % 699,492
Deferred Revenue 798,006 1,152,116 (354,110) (30.73) % 6,685
Short-Term Right of Use 268,208 268,208 0 0.00 % 268,208

Total Short-Term Liabilities 1,610,977 1,946,604 (335,627) (17.24) % 974,385
Long-Term Liabilities

Long-Term Right of Use 1,104,346 1,104,346 0 0.00 % 1,104,346
Post-Retirement Benefits Payable 3,856,991 3,856,991 0 0.00 % 3,856,991

Total-Long-Term Liabilities 4,961,337 4,961,337 0 0.00 % 4,961,337
Total Liabilities 6,572,314 6,907,941 (335,627) (4.85) % 5,935,722

Net Assets
Net Assets, Beg Bal 1,964,004 1,916,628 47,375 2.47 % 800,360
Change in Net Assets (2,242) 47,376 (49,617) (104.73) % 1,243,361

Total Net Assets 1,961,762 1,964,004 (2,242) (0.11) % 2,043,721
Total Liabilities and Net Assets 8,534,076 8,871,945 (337,869) (3.80) % 7,979,443

Net Asset Detail
Working Capital 5,296,945 5,284,693 12,252 0.23 % 5,232,996
Long-Term Net Assets (3,335,183) (3,320,689) (14,494) (0.43) % (3,189,275)

Total Net Asset Detail 1,961,762 1,964,004 (2,242) (0.11) % 2,043,721

Westchester Library System
Balance Sheet

As of October 31, 2023



M
on
th
En
di
ng

Ye
ar
To

D
at
e

Ye
ar
To

D
at
e

Ye
ar
To

D
at
e

Ye
ar
En
di
ng

10
/3
1/
20
23

10
/3
1/
20
21

10
/3
1/
20
22

10
/3
1/
20
23

12
/3
1/
20
23

A
ct
ua
l

B
ud
ge
t

Va
ria
nc
e

A
ct
ua
l

A
ct
ua
l

A
ct
ua
l

B
ud
ge
t

Va
ria
nc
e

To
ta
lB
ud
ge
t

R
ev
en
ue

St
at

e
R

ev
en

ue
s

w
ith

ou
tR

es
tri

ct
io

ns
20

6,
83

5
20

5,
92

1
91

4
1,

85
3,

25
3

2,
02

3,
56

4
2,

06
2,

80
1

2,
05

9,
20

8
3,

59
3

2,
47

1,
05

0
C

ou
nt

y
R

ev
en

ue
s

w
ith

ou
tR

es
tri

ct
io

ns
10

9,
51

5
10

6,
00

8
3,

50
7

87
4,

33
0

1,
00

1,
57

6
1,

08
4,

43
0

1,
06

0,
08

4
24

,3
47

1,
27

2,
10

0
Fe

de
ra

lR
ev

en
ue

s
w

ith
ou

tR
es

tri
ct

io
ns

5,
25

0
13

,7
50

(8
,5

00
)

69
8,

49
4

33
4,

33
4

12
0,

54
3

13
7,

50
0

(1
6,

95
7)

16
5,

00
0

M
em

be
rT

ec
hn

ol
og

y
Fe

es
22

0,
16

3
22

4,
83

3
(4

,6
70

)
2,

36
4,

09
7

2,
31

8,
60

9
2,

22
6,

80
3

2,
24

8,
33

3
(2

1,
53

1)
2,

69
8,

00
0

Fu
nd

R
ai

si
ng

&
C

on
tri

bu
tio

ns
0

0
0

1,
13

9
1,

04
9

24
9

0
24

9
0

In
te

re
st

9,
91

3
41

7
9,

49
6

2,
06

0
8,

87
0

99
,0

65
4,

16
7

94
,8

99
5,

00
0

C
C

S
&

O
th

er
2,

97
4

20
8

2,
76

5
7,

41
1

21
,5

05
16

,2
36

2,
08

3
14

,1
52

2,
50

0
G

ov
er

nm
en

tR
ev

en
ue

s
w

ith
R

es
tri

ct
io

ns
19

,1
95

18
,9

59
23

7
38

9,
80

2
18

7,
33

5
19

0,
51

0
18

9,
58

4
92

6
22

7,
50

0
O

th
er

R
ev

en
ue

s
w

ith
R

es
tri

ct
io

ns
21

,2
70

14
,4

16
6,

85
3

24
8,

20
5

30
3,

90
7

61
,6

87
14

4,
16

6
(8

2,
47

9)
17

3,
00

0
To

ta
lR

ev
en

ue
59

5,
11

4
58

4,
51

2
10

,6
02

6,
43

8,
79

0
6,

20
0,

74
9

5,
86

2,
32

4
5,

84
5,

12
5

17
,1

99
7,

01
4,

15
0

Ex
pe
nd
itu
re
s

Sa
la

rie
s

18
0,

12
9

19
7,

93
5

17
,8

06
1,

91
0,

77
3

1,
96

0,
68

9
1,

79
2,

27
9

1,
97

9,
35

2
18

7,
07

4
2,

37
5,

22
3

Fr
in

ge
Be

ne
fit

s
10

3,
89

8
11

2,
35

0
8,

45
2

94
2,

44
5

98
8,

21
1

98
0,

83
3

1,
12

3,
50

2
14

2,
66

8
1,

34
8,

20
2

Pr
of

es
si

on
al

Fe
es

66
2

4,
27

5
3,

61
3

22
,9

98
11

,9
65

16
,2

28
42

,7
50

26
,5

22
51

,3
00

Eq
ui

pm
en

t
9,

74
0

15
,8

33
6,

09
3

28
7,

30
2

43
3,

71
6

10
8,

87
7

15
8,

33
4

49
,4

57
19

0,
00

0
Li

br
ar

y
M

at
er

ia
ls

80
,6

74
59

,2
02

(2
1,

47
2)

61
5,

16
1

58
3,

21
8

71
2,

22
7

59
2,

01
6

(1
20

,2
10

)
71

0,
42

0
R

en
ta

nd
U

til
iti

es
31

,5
71

29
,6

56
(1

,9
15

)
27

7,
16

9
30

1,
44

5
32

8,
42

1
29

6,
55

9
(3

1,
86

4)
35

5,
87

0
R

ep
ai

rs
an

d
M

ai
nt

en
an

ce
44

,1
82

46
,6

16
2,

43
4

34
6,

01
7

40
7,

42
9

52
6,

34
9

46
6,

16
6

(6
0,

18
1)

55
9,

40
0

Su
pp

lie
s

16
1

3,
79

6
3,

63
6

22
,2

34
20

,6
28

3,
79

6
37

,9
59

34
,1

62
45

,5
50

Te
le

ph
on

e
an

d
In

te
rn

et
35

,6
88

38
,9

25
3,

23
7

31
4,

84
4

35
5,

33
3

39
7,

86
2

38
9,

25
0

(8
,6

12
)

46
7,

10
0

Pr
in

tin
g

an
d

Po
st

ag
e

3,
59

4
6,

24
2

2,
64

7
66

,2
41

99
,1

07
44

,6
81

62
,4

16
17

,7
35

74
,9

00
Bi

bl
io

gr
ap

hi
c

Fe
es

7,
27

3
7,

45
8

18
5

66
,2

44
67

,0
71

71
,6

16
74

,5
84

2,
96

8
89

,5
00

Pr
of

es
si

on
al

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t
18

,5
45

8,
17

1
(1

0,
37

4)
22

,0
07

48
,1

03
48

,0
92

81
,7

08
33

,6
16

98
,0

50
Tr

av
el

5,
44

9
4,

20
0

(1
,2

49
)

1,
06

4
26

,8
16

42
,9

64
42

,0
00

(9
64

)
50

,4
00

M
em

be
rs

hi
ps

70
1

2,
33

3
1,

63
2

15
,3

71
16

,4
87

17
,0

99
23

,3
33

6,
23

4
28

,0
00

C
on

tra
ct

ua
lS

er
vi

ce
s

20
,3

56
32

,9
42

12
,5

86
25

8,
60

2
40

4,
81

2
30

6,
59

7
32

9,
41

7
22

,8
20

39
5,

30
0

D
el

iv
er

y
Se

rv
ic

e
36

,8
03

37
,5

83
78

0
36

1,
76

6
40

3,
73

8
37

1,
47

5
37

5,
83

3
4,

35
8

45
1,

00
0

In
su

ra
nc

e
2,

81
5

2,
91

7
10

1
22

,2
43

25
,1

83
27

,5
78

29
,1

67
1,

58
9

35
,0

00
M

is
ce

lla
ne

ou
s

62
1

2,
25

0
1,

63
0

5,
26

7
5,

65
2

5,
56

9
22

,5
00

16
,9

31
27

,0
00

To
ta

lE
xp

en
di

tu
re

s
58

2,
86

2
61

2,
68

4
29

,8
22

5,
55

7,
74

8
6,

15
9,

60
3

5,
80

2,
54

3
6,

12
6,

84
6

32
4,

30
3

7,
35

2,
21

5
To

ta
lN

et
R

ev
en

ue
Be

fo
re

D
ep

re
ci

at
io

n
12

,2
52

(2
8,

17
2)

40
,4

24
88

1,
04

2
41

,1
46

59
,7

81
(2

81
,7

21
)

34
1,

50
2

(3
38

,0
65

)
N
on
-C
as
h
A
ct
iv
ity

D
ep

re
ci

at
io

n
14

,4
94

14
,0

83
(4

10
)

15
8,

13
1

11
2,

20
7

14
5,

90
7

14
0,

83
3

(5
,0

74
)

16
9,

00
0

U
nr

ea
liz

ed
G

ai
n/

Lo
ss

on
In

ve
st

m
en

ts
0

0
0

11
5

(2
,6

60
)

(4
,1

68
)

0
4,

16
8

0
To

ta
lN

on
-C

as
h

Ac
tiv

ity
14

,4
94

14
,0

83
(4

10
)

15
8,

24
6

10
9,

54
7

14
1,

73
9

14
0,

83
3

(9
06

)
16

9,
00

0
To
ta
lN
et
R
ev
en
ue

(2
,2
42
)

(4
2,
25
5)

40
,0
14

72
2,
79
6

(6
8,
40
1)

(8
1,
95
8)

(4
22
,5
54
)

34
0,
59
6

(5
07
,0
65
)

W
es

tc
he

st
er

Li
br

ar
y

Sy
st

em
St

at
em

en
to

fR
ev

en
ue

s
an

d
Ex

pe
nd

itu
re

s
C

om
pa

ris
on

to
Bu

dg
et

w
ith

Pr
ev

io
us

Ye
ar

s
To

D
at

e
As

of
O

ct
ob

er
31

,2
02

3



  
Ye

ar
 E

nd
in

g
01

/0
1/

20
23

 T
hr

ou
gh

C
ur

re
nt

 Y
ea

r
C

ur
re

nt
 Y

ea
r

C
ur

re
nt

 Y
ea

r
 

12
/3

1/
20

23
01

0/
31

/2
02

3
Pr

oj
ec

te
d

To
ta

l P
ro

je
ct

io
ns

Pr
oj

ec
te

d 
vs

. B
ud

ge
t

 
To

ta
l B

ud
ge

t
C

ur
re

nt
 Y

TD
 A

ct
ua

l
O

ct
. -

 D
ec

.
Pr

oj
ec

tio
ns

Va
ria

nc
e

  R
ev

en
ue

  
  

  
  

  
   

 S
ta

te
 R

ev
en

ue
s 

w
ith

ou
t R

es
tri

ct
io

ns
2,

47
1,

05
0

2,
06

2,
80

1
41

3,
74

3
2,

47
6,

54
4

5,
49

4
   

 C
ou

nt
y 

R
ev

en
ue

s 
w

ith
ou

t R
es

tri
ct

io
ns

1,
27

2,
10

0
1,

08
4,

43
0

21
9,

57
5

1,
30

4,
00

5
31

,9
05

   
 F

ed
er

al
 R

ev
en

ue
s 

w
ith

ou
t R

es
tri

ct
io

ns
16

5,
00

0
12

0,
54

3
10

,5
00

13
1,

04
3

(3
3,

95
7)

   
 M

em
be

r T
ec

hn
ol

og
y 

Fe
es

2,
69

8,
00

0
2,

22
6,

80
3

44
5,

36
0

2,
67

2,
16

3
(2

5,
83

7)
   

 F
un

d 
R

ai
si

ng
 &

 C
on

tri
bu

tio
ns

0
24

9
50

29
9

29
9

   
 In

te
re

st
5,

00
0

99
,0

65
19

,8
13

11
8,

87
8

11
3,

87
8

   
 C

C
S 

& 
O

th
er

2,
50

0
16

,2
36

3,
24

7
19

,4
82

16
,9

82
   

 G
ov

er
nm

en
t R

ev
en

ue
s 

w
ith

 R
es

tri
ct

io
ns

22
7,

50
0

19
0,

51
0

38
,3

73
22

8,
88

3
1,

38
3

   
 O

th
er

 R
ev

en
ue

s 
w

ith
 R

es
tri

ct
io

ns
17

3,
00

0
61

,6
87

23
,5

63
85

,2
50

(8
7,

75
0)

  T
ot

al
 R

ev
en

ue
7,

01
4,

15
0

5,
86

2,
32

4
1,

17
4,

22
4

7,
03

6,
54

7
22

,3
97

  E
xp

en
di

tu
re

s
  

  
  

  
  

   
 S

al
ar

ie
s

2,
37

5,
22

3
1,

79
2,

27
9

37
8,

45
5

2,
17

0,
73

4
20

4,
48

9
   

 F
rin

ge
 B

en
ef

its
1,

34
8,

20
2

98
0,

83
3

19
6,

16
7

1,
17

7,
00

0
17

1,
20

2
   

 P
ro

fe
ss

io
na

l F
ee

s
51

,3
00

16
,2

28
3,

24
6

19
,4

74
31

,8
26

   
 E

qu
ip

m
en

t
19

0,
00

0
10

8,
87

7
21

,7
75

13
0,

65
2

59
,3

48
   

 L
ib

ra
ry

 M
at

er
ia

ls
71

0,
42

0
71

2,
22

7
14

2,
44

5
85

4,
67

2
(1

44
,2

52
)

   
 R

en
t a

nd
 U

til
iti

es
35

5,
87

0
32

8,
42

1
65

,6
85

39
4,

10
6

(3
8,

23
6)

   
 R

ep
ai

rs
 a

nd
 M

ai
nt

en
an

ce
55

9,
40

0
52

6,
34

9
10

5,
26

9
63

1,
61

8
(7

2,
21

8)
   

 S
up

pl
ie

s
45

,5
50

3,
79

6
4,

26
0

8,
05

6
37

,4
94

   
 T

el
ep

ho
ne

 a
nd

 In
te

rn
et

46
7,

10
0

39
7,

86
2

79
,5

72
47

7,
43

5
(1

0,
33

5)
   

 P
rin

tin
g 

an
d 

Po
st

ag
e

74
,9

00
44

,6
81

8,
93

6
53

,6
18

21
,2

82
   

 B
ib

lio
gr

ap
hi

c 
Fe

es
89

,5
00

71
,6

16
14

,3
23

85
,9

39
3,

56
1

   
 P

ro
fe

ss
io

na
l D

ev
el

op
m

en
t

98
,0

50
48

,0
92

9,
61

9
57

,7
10

40
,3

40
   

 T
ra

ve
l

50
,4

00
42

,9
64

8,
59

3
51

,5
57

(1
,1

57
)

   
 M

em
be

rs
hi

ps
28

,0
00

17
,0

99
3,

41
9

20
,5

19
7,

48
1

   
 C

on
tra

ct
ua

l S
er

vi
ce

s
39

5,
30

0
30

6,
59

7
71

,3
20

37
7,

91
7

17
,3

83
   

 D
el

iv
er

y 
Se

rv
ic

e
45

1,
00

0
37

1,
47

5
74

,2
95

44
5,

77
0

5,
23

0
   

 In
su

ra
nc

e
35

,0
00

27
,5

78
5,

51
5

33
,0

93
1,

90
7

   
 M

is
ce

lla
ne

ou
s

27
,0

00
5,

56
9

1,
11

4
6,

68
3

20
,3

17
  T

ot
al

 E
xp

en
di

tu
re

s
7,

35
2,

21
5

5,
80

2,
54

3
1,

19
4,

00
8

6,
99

6,
55

3
35

5,
66

2
  T

ot
al

 N
et

 R
ev

en
ue

 B
ef

or
e 

D
ep

re
ci

at
io

n
(3

38
,0

65
)

59
,7

81
(1

9,
78

4)
39

,9
94

37
8,

05
9

  N
on

-C
as

h 
Ac

tiv
ity

  
  

  
  

  
   

 D
ep

re
ci

at
io

n
16

9,
00

0
14

5,
90

7
29

,1
82

17
5,

08
9

6,
08

9
   

 U
nr

ea
liz

ed
 G

ai
n/

Lo
ss

 o
n 

In
ve

st
m

en
ts

0
(4

,1
68

)
(8

34
)

(5
,0

01
)

(5
,0

01
)

  T
ot

al
 N

on
-C

as
h 

Ac
tiv

ity
16

9,
00

0
14

1,
73

9
28

,3
48

17
0,

08
8

1,
08

8
  T

ot
al

 N
et

 R
ev

en
ue

(5
07

,0
65

)
(8

1,
95

8)
(4

8,
13

2)
(1

30
,0

94
)

37
9,

14
7

  

W
es

tc
he

st
er

 L
ib

ra
ry

 S
ys

te
m

St
at

em
en

t o
f R

ev
en

ue
s 

an
d 

Ex
pe

nd
itu

re
s

W
ith

 P
ro

je
ct

io
ns

As
 o

f O
ct

ob
er

 3
1,

 2
02

3



Westchester Library System  Action Item #1 (10/24/23) 
 

 

Item: WLS 2024 Operating Budget 
 
Background: The Budget Committee of the Board of Trustees met three times through 

September and October to review a number of options in order to arrive 
at a budget proposal for the 2024 fiscal year.  Each of the committee’s 
meetings focused on the following: 
 September 21 

o Budget process and overview 
o Employee compensation 
o Administration department 
o Information Technology department 

 October 3 
o Career Coaching Service department 
o Outreach department 
o Training department 

 October 19 
o Cataloging department 
o Delivery department 
o Fund-Raising department 
o Executive Summary 

 
Status: Attached is the Executive Summary for the proposed FY 2024 operating 

budget along with detail spreadsheets and back-up information. 
 
 In addition to the work of the Committee input was also sought from the 

WLS managers and staff. 
 
Recommended  
Action: The Budget Committee recommends adoption of the FY2024 operations 

budget as presented. 
 



Executive Summary



2024 Budget Highlights 

o

4

4

o

o
o



Operating Highlights 

 

 

 
 
 

 
o 
o 
o 
o 

 
o 
o 
o 
o 

 
o 

 
o 

o 
 

 

o 

Banking Services 



About Supported Activities Charts 

Conclusion 













 

 
Executive Directors Report 

November 2023 
 

 

 



 
 
 

  Page 2 

 



 
 
 

  Page 3 

 

 

 

 



 
 
 

  Page 4 

 



 
 
 

  Page 5 

 



 
 
 

  Page 6 

 



 
 
 

  Page 7 

 



 
 
 

  Page 8 

 



 
 
 

  Page 9 

 

.  

 

 


